
           

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2021

ADDISON TREEHOUSE
14681 MIDWAY ROAD, SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001

6:00 PM REGULAR MEETING
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and public hearing will be held at
the Addison TreeHouse, 14681 Midway Road, Suite 200, Addison, Texas 75001
on Tuesday, November 16, 2021 at 6 pm. Seating for the public will be available
using CDC recommended social distancing measures. Telephonic or
videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the
Commission. For more information on meeting location and ways to view and/or
present comments, please contact Jenifer Tedrick prior to 3:00 pm on the day of
the meeting at 972-450-2823 or by emailing  jtedrick@addisontx.gov.  Members of
the public are entitled to participate remotely via Dial-in Number: 346.248.7799;
Meeting ID: 816 7560 5803; Participant ID: #. For more detailed instructions on
how to participate in this meeting, visit our Agenda Page. The meeting will be live
streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net.
           
Call Meeting to Order
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda:  All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered
routine by the Planning and Zoning Commission and will be enacted by one
motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

 
Page 1 

 

  

mailto:jtedrick@addisontx.gov
http://www.addisontexas.net/


1. Consider Action on the Minutes from the October 19, 2021 Planning
and Zoning Commission Meeting.

 

2. Consider Action on a Replat of the Vitruvian Park Addition, Lots 1R
and 2, Block E, comprising 11.26 Acres located on the East Side of
Marsh Lane and 150 Feet South of Spring Valley Road and being a
Replat of Lot 1, Block E, Brookhaven Shopping Center Phase 2 and
Lot 1, Block 1, Greenhaven Village No. 2. Case R2021-01/Vitruvian Park
Addition.

 

Regular Agenda:
 

3. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance for Property Located at
14854 Montfort Drive, currently zoned Planned Development (PD)
through Ordinance No. 084-076, for a Special Use Permit (SUP) to
allow a Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic Beverage for
On-Premises Consumption. Case 1841-SUP/14854 Montfort Drive (TK’s
Place).

 

4. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance for Property Located at
14450 Marsh Lane, currently Zoned Local Retail (LR), for a Special
Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Day Nursery. Case 1842-SUP/14450
Marsh Lane (Tierra Encantada).

 

5. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance for a 5.11-acre Property
Located at the Southeast Corner of Spring Valley Road and Vitruvian
Way, currently zoned Planned Development (PD) through Ordinance
No. O07-034 as amended by Ordinance No. O16-017, to Amend the
Concept Plan and Approving a Development Plan with Waivers to the
Development Standards, including but not limited to, Street Build-To
Line, Exterior Building Material, and Building Color Standards for a
Multi-Family Development Comprised of 85 Dwelling Units and
Associated Amenity Space. Case 1839-Z/Vitruvian Townhomes.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet in

 
Page 2 

 

  



NOTE: The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to meet in
Executive Session closed to the public at any time in the course of this meeting
to discuss matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open
Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071
(private consultation with the attorney for the City). Any decision held on such
matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the conclusion of
the Executive Session.
 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN

ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: ________________________________
TIME POSTED:  ________________________________
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________

 
Page 3 

 

  



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 2.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021  

Agenda Caption:
Consider Action on the Minutes from the October 19, 2021 Planning and
Zoning Commission Meeting.

Staff Report:
The minutes from the October 19, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting have been prepared for consideration.

Recommendation:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes of the October 19, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 
October 19, 2021 
6:00 P.M. - Addison TreeHouse
Addison TreeHouse, 14681 Midway Road, Suite 200
 

Present:  Chair Eileen Resnik; Vice Chair Tom Souers; Commissioner Robert Catalani;
Commissioner Nancy Craig; Commissioner Chris DeFrancisco; Commissioner Denise
Fansler; Commissioner John Meleky 

 

               
Call Meeting to Order: Chair Resnik called the meeting to order.
 
Pledge of Allegiance: Chair Resnik led the Pledge of Allegiance.
 
Regular Agenda:
 
1. Consider Action on the Minutes from the September 21, 2021

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting.
  

 
  Motion: Approval of the minutes as presented. 
 
  Moved by Commissioner John Meleky, Seconded by Commissioner

Nancy Craig 
  AYE:  Chair Eileen Resnik, Vice Chair Tom Souers, Commissioner

Robert Catalani, Commissioner Nancy Craig, Commissioner
Chris DeFrancisco, Commissioner Denise Fansler, Commissioner
John Meleky 

Passed 
 
2. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 

Recommendation regarding an Ordinance on Property Located at
4141 Spring Valley Road, currently zoned R-1 Single Family
Dwelling and Planned Development (PD) through Ordinance
084-092, for a Special Use Permit to Allow a New Private School

  

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



Building. Case 1836-SUP/4141 Spring Valley Road (Greenhill School
Science Building).

 
  The Commission moved this item to occur after item #3 to allow for

applicant participation in the meeting.
 
Discussion:
Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services, presented the Staff
Report.
 
Chair Resnik asked if staff has discussed the options for tree mitigation
with the applicant. Staff indicated that these options were discussed with
the applicant; however, potential locations for tree plantings had not been
discussed.
 
Commissioner Fansler asked if the fees that go into the Tree
Replacement Fund can be used anywhere in the Town. Mr. Schmidt
stated that the funds can be used to plant trees in public spaces
anywhere in Town. Typically, staff would try to plant trees near the
location where the trees were removed if an appropriate location is
available.
 
Commissioner Catalani asked if the proposed new tree plantings are
similar in species to what is being removed. Mr. Schmidt confirmed that
all new plantings comply with the Town’s landscape requirements.
 
Commissioner DeFrancisco asked about the Town’s past use of funds
from the Tree Replacement Fund. Mr. Schmidt provided an update on
the status of funds that were collected for the recent Trinity Christian
Academy project.
 
Commissioner Fansler asked how the use of Tree Replacement Fund
collections impacts the amount and type of tree replacement
expenditures for the Town. Mr. Schmidt shared that these funds
supplement the Town’s existing resources and allows for the reduction of
expenses that would typically be covered by other revenue sources.
 
Commissioner Catalani asked if the fees could be collected and allocated
only to the Greenhill site in the future. Mr. Schmidt indicated that it may
be possible if an agreement were to be developed that laid out clear
conditions for that scenario.
 
Vice Chair Souers expressed concerns about the administrative
complexity of granting credits for past Arbor Day tree plantings. Vice
Chair Souers and Commissioner DeFrancisco expressed support for fees

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



Chair Souers and Commissioner DeFrancisco expressed support for fees
being paid into the Tree Replacement Fund.
 
Commissioner Catalani asked about the anticipated construction start
date. Mr. Schmidt indicated that they intend to begin construction as
soon as possible and intend to complete the project by the Fall of 2023.
 
Vice Chair Souers asked for clarification on the 2018 International
Building Code (IBC) that is applicable to the storm shelter. Mr. Schmidt
stated that these codes are adopted by many cities across the nation as
a baseline for regulating building construction. The requirement for
educational facilities to construct storm shelters is a new standard
established by the 2018 IBC.
 
Kendra Grace, Greenhill School’s Associate Head of School, confirmed
the construction timeline and introduced members of the project team.
 
Mike Willis, Greenhill School’s Director of Facilities, discussed past Arbor
Day plantings carried out by Greenhill School.
 
Margaret Sledge, Project Architect with Bohlin Cywinski Jackson,
discussed Greenhill School’s desire to implement sustainable site and
building design with this project.
 
Vice Chair Souers asked to clarify how storm shelter floor area is
calculated. Ms. Sledge provided additional context on the code
requirement to provide a peer review of their storm shelter design in
order to ensure it meets the site specific needs at the MSI building.
 
Commissioner Fansler asked about the location of construction staging
on site. Mr. Willis confirmed that it is being provided in a parking area to
the north of the building site. Ms. Grace confirmed that they have opened
additional parking areas to meet parking demand.

Commisioner Catalani departed the meeting.
 
Chair Resnik opened the meeting as a public hearing.
 
Public Hearing: There were no speakers on this item.
 
Chair Resnik closed the public hearing.
 
Motion: Recommend approval of the SUP with the condition that tree
mitigation be met by paying a fee in lieu of tree replacement into the Tree
Replacement Fund. 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



 
  Moved by Commissioner Chris DeFrancisco, Seconded by Vice Chair

Tom Souers 
  AYE:  Chair Eileen Resnik, Vice Chair Tom Souers, Commissioner

Nancy Craig, Commissioner Chris DeFrancisco, Commissioner
Denise Fansler, Commissioner John Meleky 

Other:  Commissioner Robert Catalani (ABSENT) 
Passed 

 
3. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 

Recommendation regarding an Ordinance, on Property located at
5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 868, currently zoned Planned
Development (PD), through Ordinance O12-002 and Ordinance
O20-08, for a Special Use Permit to allow for the Expansion of an
Existing Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for On
Premises Consumption Only. Case 1837-SUP/5100 Belt Line Road
(Low Key Poke Joint).

  

 
  Jenifer Tedrick, Planning & Development Manager, presented the Staff

Report.

Vice Chair Souers inquired about the development rights that would be
granted by the proposed SUP and how that differs from the existing SUP.
Ms. Tedrick clarified that the proposed SUP would allow for the same
use, restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises
consumption; however, the proposed SUP would apply to the existing
portion of the building, as well as the proposed expansion.
 
Vice Chair Souers questioned if the proposed interior ramp that will
connect the existing restaurant to the proposed expansion would block
the entry door and also expressed that the proposed ramp did not appear
to comply with ADA accessibility requirements. Hai Nguyen, General
Contractor for the project, provided clarification that the ramp would be
3.5 feet wide due to a change in elevation between the two buildings.
 
Vice Chair Souers stated that it would not be possible to provide a ramp
long enough to satisfy ADA requirements and the project would be best
served by removing the ramp feature and replacing it with steps. Mr.
Schmidt acknowledged that it would not be feasible for the ramp to meet
ADA requirements and clarified that the ramp was recommended by staff
to allow for movement and openness between the restaurant areas and
to reduce tripping hazards within this space.
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



 
Vice Chair Souers inquired about the designated handicapped parking
near the tenant space and the ADA ramp not being directly adjacent to
the handicapped parking space.
 
Mr. Schmidt introduced Jason Jones, Village on the Parkway property
owner representative, who shared with the Commission that they are
aware of challenges with ADA parking within the property. Mr. Jones
also clarified that there is one handicapped parking space directly in front
of the expanded Low Key Poke space. Mr. Jones also shared updates
on near-term plans for improving pedestrian access within Village on the
Parkway.
 
Vice Chair Souers and Commissioner Fansler discussed current
accessibility to this space and a desire to see near-term action on
associated accessibility issues.
 
Chair Resnik opened the meeting as a public hearing.
 
Public Hearing:
 
Sam Handa, Low Key Poke Joint Owner, addressed the Commission
and described the dining options at his restaurant.
 
Chair Resnik closed the public hearing.
 
Motion: Recommend approval of the SUP with the following conditions: 

The applicant shall not use any terms or graphics depictions that
relate to alcoholic beverages in any exterior signage.

The SUP Ordinance (O17-015) for the existing restaurant is
repealed concurrent to the adoption of this SUP Ordinance.

 
  Moved by Commissioner Chris DeFrancisco, Seconded by

Commissioner John Meleky 
  AYE:  Chair Eileen Resnik, Vice Chair Tom Souers, Commissioner

Robert Catalani, Commissioner Nancy Craig, Commissioner
Chris DeFrancisco, Commissioner Denise Fansler, Commissioner
John Meleky 

Passed 
 
4. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a    

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



4. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance, on Property Located at
3719 Belt Line Road, currently Zoned Planned Development (PD)
through Ordinance O92-037, for a Special Use Permit to allow a
Restaurant. Case 1840-SUP/3719 Belt Line Road (Poke Works).

  

 
  Jenifer Tedrick, Planning & Development Manager, presented the Staff

Report.

Vice Chair Souers asked how long the tenant space has been vacant.
Ms. Tedrick stated that the space has been vacant for the past 4 to 5
years.
 
Chair Resnik opened the meeting as a public hearing.
 
Public Hearing: There were no speakers on this item.
 
Chair Resnik closed the public hearing.
 
Motion: Recommend approval of the SUP. 

 
  Moved by Commissioner Nancy Craig, Seconded by Commissioner

Denise Fansler 
  AYE:  Chair Eileen Resnik, Vice Chair Tom Souers, Commissioner

Robert Catalani, Commissioner Nancy Craig, Commissioner
Chris DeFrancisco, Commissioner Denise Fansler, Commissioner
John Meleky 

Passed 
 
5. Provide an Update on the Status of Case 1831-Z/4150 Kellway Circle.   
 
  Ken Schmidt, Director of Development Services, updated the

Commission on the status of Case 1831-Z, which was tabled at the
previous meeting. The applicant has not provided staff plan refinements
required to move forward with the rezoning request. Staff will continue to
work with the applicant and will place this item on a future Planning and
Zoning Commission agenda once remaining outstanding items have
been addressed. Future Town consideration will require new property
owner notifications to be mailed out.
 
No action was required on this item. 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



 

Adjourn Meeting
 
There being no further business before the Commission, the meeting was
adjourned.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY October 19, 2021

  



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 3.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021  

Agenda Caption:
Consider Action on a Replat of the Vitruvian Park Addition, Lots 1R and 2,
Block E, comprising 11.26 Acres located on the East Side of Marsh Lane
and 150 Feet South of Spring Valley Road and being a Replat of Lot 1,
Block E, Brookhaven Shopping Center Phase 2 and Lot 1, Block 1,
Greenhaven Village No. 2. Case R2021-01/Vitruvian Park Addition.

Attachments
R2021-01 Staff Report 
Replat - Vitruvian Park Addition, Lots 1R and 2, Block E 



R2021-01 
 

 
Case R2021-01/Vitruvian Park Addition. Consider Action on a Replat of the Vitruvian 
Park Addition, Lots 1R and 2, Block E, comprising 11.26 Acres located on the East Side 
of Marsh Lane and 150 Feet South of Spring Valley Road and being a Replat of Lot 1, 
Block E, Brookhaven Shopping Center Phase 2 and Lot 1, Block 1, Greenhaven Village 
No. 2. 
 

LOCATION MAP 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
November 12, 2021 

 
STAFF REPORT 
 
RE: Replat/Vitruvian Park Addition Lots 1R and 2, Block 

E 
 
LOCATION: 11.626 acres generally located on the east side of 

Marsh Lane and 150 feet south of Spring Valley 
Road, known as the Brookhaven Village Shopping 
Center 

 
REQUEST: Approval of a Replat 
 
APPLICANT: Joel Massey, Icon Consulting Engineering 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Background. The subject property is generally located on the east side of Marsh Lane and 150 
feet south of Spring Valley Road. This site received development plan approval for the 
redevelopment of the Brookhaven Village Shopping Center as part of the larger Vitruvian Park 
redevelopment.  
 
In 2016, a preliminary plat was approved that showed the consolidation of two existing lots in 
separate additions, Brookhaven Shopping Center, Phase 2 and Greenhaven Village, No. 2, and 
reflected the easements necessary to service the proposed redevelopment. Additionally, in April 
2021, a Special Use Permit (SUP) for a restaurant with drive-thru service was approved for Dutch 
Bros Coffee through Ordinance No. O21-15, at 14310 Marsh Lane, within the subject property. 
 
This replat will consolidate the two existing lots, create a new lot for Dutch Bros Coffee (Lot 2) 
and establish a new addition name (Vitruvian Park Addition).  
 
Engineering Review. The plat has been reviewed by Town staff and is compliance with all 
requirements.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed plat. 



SPRING VALLEY ROAD

M
AR

SH
 L

AN
E

℄

℄

V
IT

R
U

V
IA

N
 P

A
R

K
 A

D
D

IT
IO

NLEGEND

2021-11-10    #0009681

FINAL  PLAT

 OF

Vitruvian Park Addition

LOTS 1R AND 2, BLOCK E

11.626 ACRES

BEING A REPLAT OF

LOT 1, BLOCK E,

BROOKHAVEN SHOPPING CENTER PHASE 2

AND LOT 1, BLOCK 1, GREENHAVEN VILLAGE NO. 2

NOAH GOOD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 520

TOWN OF ADDISON,  DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Owner

DCO BROOKHAVEN CENTER LP, and

DCO REALTY, INC.

c/o Robert P. St. John

1745 Shea Center Drive, Suite 200

Highlands Ranch, Colorado, 80129

720-348-7722

 Engineer/Surveyor

”

“ ” 

” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

”  

NOT FOR
RECORDING

TBPLS Firm Reg. No. 10074301
TBPE Firm Reg. No. 11756

Phone (214) 473-4640 2901 North Dallas Parkway, Suite 280
Toll Free (888) 937-5150 Plano, TX 75093

2

1



SPRING VALLEY ROAD
M

AR
SH

 L
AN

E
℄

℄

2
4
.
0
0

3
0
.
0
0

2
4
.
0
0

24.00 30.00

2
8
.
0
0

2
8
.
0
0

2
4
.
0
0

28.00

2
4
.
0
0

28.00

2
4
.
0
0

30.00

30.00

2
4
.
0
0

3
0
.
0
0

24.00

1
2
.
0
0

1
2
.
0
0

V
IT

R
U

V
IA

N
 P

A
R

K
 A

D
D

IT
IO

NLEGEND

2021-11-10    #0009681

FINAL  PLAT

 OF

Vitruvian Park Addition

LOTS 1R AND 2, BLOCK E

11.626 ACRES

BEING A REPLAT OF

LOT 1, BLOCK E,

BROOKHAVEN SHOPPING CENTER PHASE 2

AND LOT 1, BLOCK 1, GREENHAVEN VILLAGE NO. 2

NOAH GOOD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 520

TOWN OF ADDISON,  DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Owner

DCO BROOKHAVEN CENTER LP, and

DCO REALTY, INC.

c/o Robert P. St. John

1745 Shea Center Drive, Suite 200

Highlands Ranch, Colorado, 80129

720-348-7722

 Engineer/Surveyor

TBPLS Firm Reg. No. 10074301
TBPE Firm Reg. No. 11756

Phone (214) 473-4640 2901 North Dallas Parkway, Suite 280
Toll Free (888) 937-5150 Plano, TX 75093

2

2

SHARED ACCESS EASEMENT EXHIBIT



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 4.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021  

Agenda Caption:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance for Property Located at 14854
Montfort Drive, currently zoned Planned Development (PD) through
Ordinance No. 084-076, for a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow a
Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic Beverage for On-Premises
Consumption. Case 1841-SUP/14854 Montfort Drive (TK’s Place).

Attachments
1841-SUP Staff Report 
1841-SUP Plans 



1841-SUP 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING Case 1841-SUP/14854 Montfort Drive (TK’s Place). Hold a Public 
Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Recommendation regarding an 
Ordinance for Property Located at 14854 Montfort Drive, currently zoned Planned 
Development (PD) through Ordinance No. 084-076, for a Special Use Permit (SUP) to 
allow a Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic Beverage for On-Premises Consumption.  
 

LOCATION MAP 
 
 

         Proposed SUP Location 



 

 

 

November 12, 2021 

 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: 1841-SUP/14854 Montfort Drive (TK’s Place) 

LOCATION:     14854 Montfort Drive 

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for a restaurant 
with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises 
consumption. 

 
APPLICANT:  TK Matteson  

DISCUSSION:  

Background: This restaurant is proposed for an existing freestanding building located at 14854 
Montfort Drive, which is situated on the east side of Montfort Drive approximately 1,200 feet south 
of Belt Line Road. This property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District and is governed by 
Ordinance No. 084-076. The subject building is located on the same property with the 
Prestonwood Pond office building and the Blue Mesa restaurant. 
 
The subject building is a split-level building that was constructed in 1984, when it received its 
original Special Use Permit (SUP) for a restaurant. The building has housed various restaurant 
concepts with the most recent being Public School 972, which obtained SUP approval in 2015, 
via Ordinance No. O15-014. The building underwent major interior and exterior renovation when 
it was occupied by Public School 972. The building is currently vacant, following the closure of 
Public School 972 in October. 
 
Proposed Plan:  The applicant is requesting approval of an SUP for a restaurant with the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption. The proposed use, TK’s Place, is a new 
restaurant concept that combines the owner’s passions of food, hospitality, and comedy. The 
owners, TK and Kara Matteson, produced and performed stand-up comedy shows including 
performances on American’s Got Talent and Comedy Central. The restaurant will offer a full lunch 
and dinner menu delivered with a comedic flair.  
 
The proposed floor plan shows use of 12,557 square feet, inclusive of an 1,830 square foot 
outdoor patio area. The restaurant will primarily utilize the first floor, which accommodates seating 
for 125 patrons, inclusive of the patio and the bar area at the center of the restaurant. The 
remainder of the first floor will consist of a service counter, prep area, and cooler storage. The 
basement level will used for an additional dining area that will be used for private dining events 
and storage. A new bar will also be constructed, accommodating seating for 73 patrons on the 
basement level. 
 
The seating arrangement on the first level is proposed as “loose seating” to allow flexibility to 
accommodate a typical restaurant floor plan and periodic standup comedy event on weekends 



 
 

 

and evenings. To ensure that this business meets the intent of the requested restaurant use, staff 
recommends limiting comedy events to no more than 3 days per week and restricting those 
activities to indoor areas. 
 
Parking: This property is zoned PD, which requires a parking ratio of 1 space per 100 square feet 
for freestanding restaurants in mixed use developments where parking is shared amongst 
adjacent uses. The building shares parking with the office building and the Blue Mesa restaurant, 
as required by the PD. There are a total of 460 parking spaces within the property, including 
parking in the underground parking structure and under the office building.  
 
TK’s Place will require 126 parking spaces. With the required parking for Blue Mesa and the office 
building, the total required parking for the site is 461 spaces. With the SUP review for Public 
School 972, the Town determined that the additional parking space would not be required based 
on reduced occupancy in the office buildings and the complementary tenant mix on the property. 
Staff believes it would be equitable to extend this same consideration to this applicant. 
 
Exterior Facades: Except for new building signage, the applicant will not make any changes to 
the existing façade.  
 
Landscaping and Streetscape: The landscape ordinance requires properties to comply with the 
current landscape standards when a request for zoning action is requested. Staff has reviewed 
the landscaping within the general vicinity of the subject building and the landscaping is in general 
compliance with the landscape ordinance. Given that this single tenant comprises a portion of a 
much larger site, it would not be practical to require this tenant to bring the entire site into 
compliance. The property owner has committed to replacing all dead or damaged landscaping 
and establishing ground cover on the existing berm along Montfort Drive.  
 
The segment of Montfort Drive that this building fronts on, does not currently have a sidewalk. 
Since this project is not adding floor area, it is not creating additional demand for Town 
infrastructure. As such, installation of this sidewalk should be deferred until this property 
redevelops, or when the Town proceeds with the reconstruction of Montfort Drive, whichever 
occurs first. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS 
 
The building has a long history or restaurant tenants and TK’s place will provide a unique, 
comedy-driven restaurant concept to the Addison dining experience.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the request, subject to the following condition:  
 

• The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic 
beverages in any exterior signs. 
 

• The applicant shall limit comedy events to indoor areas and to a frequency of occurrence 
of no more than three days per week. 
 

• Existing SUP Ordinance No. O15-014 is repealed upon issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the proposed use. 



DATE

TK
'S

 P
LA

C
E,

 L
LC

SHEET

14
85

4 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D

NOV. 10, 2021
SUP SUBMITTAL

A
D

D
ISO

N
, T

X 
75

25
4

5.
38

8 
A

C
 T

RA
C

T 
IN

 T
HE

 A
LL

EN
 B

LE
D

SO
E

SU
RV

EY
, A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 1

57
, C

ITY
 O

F 
A

D
D

ISO
N

D
A

LL
A

S 
C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S
18

41
-S

UP
TH

O
M

A
S 

W
EB

ER
 A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

78
11

 L
O

VE
RS

 L
A

N
E

D
A

LL
A

S, 
TX

 7
52

25
   

TO
M

@
TH

O
M

A
SW

EB
ER

.C
O

M

TE
N

A
N

T

14
86

0 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D
A

D
D

ISO
N

, T
X 

75
25

4

O
W

N
ER

PR
ES

TO
N

W
O

O
D

 P
O

N
D

TK
O

C
O

M
ED

Y@
G

M
A

IL.
C

O
M

M
IC

HA
EL

@
SA

S-
RE

A
LE

ST
A

TE
.C

O
M

LE
G

A
L 

D
ES

C
RI

PT
IO

N
D

ES
IG

N
 T

EA
M

A1.2
SUP OVERALL SITE PLAN

1" = 40'-0"
1

PARKING ANALYSIS



EXISTING FIRE LANE

EXISTING
PERGOLA TO
REMAIN

DATE

TK
'S

 P
LA

C
E,

 L
LC

SHEET

14
85

4 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D

NOV. 10, 2021
SUP SUBMITTAL

A
D

D
ISO

N
, T

X 
75

25
4

5.
38

8 
A

C
 T

RA
C

T 
IN

 T
HE

 A
LL

EN
 B

LE
D

SO
E

SU
RV

EY
, A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 1

57
, C

ITY
 O

F 
A

D
D

ISO
N

D
A

LL
A

S 
C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S
18

41
-S

UP
TH

O
M

A
S 

W
EB

ER
 A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

78
11

 L
O

VE
RS

 L
A

N
E

D
A

LL
A

S, 
TX

 7
52

25
   

TO
M

@
TH

O
M

A
SW

EB
ER

.C
O

M

TE
N

A
N

T

14
86

0 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D
A

D
D

ISO
N

, T
X 

75
25

4

O
W

N
ER

PR
ES

TO
N

W
O

O
D

 P
O

N
D

TK
O

C
O

M
ED

Y@
G

M
A

IL.
C

O
M

M
IC

HA
EL

@
SA

S-
RE

A
LE

ST
A

TE
.C

O
M

LE
G

A
L 

D
ES

C
RI

PT
IO

N
D

ES
IG

N
 T

EA
M

A1.1
SITE PLAN

1" = 10'-0"
1

SHEET INDEX

A1.1  SUP SITE PLAN, PROJECT INFO
A1.2 - OVERALL SITE PLAN
A2.1  SUP BASEMENT PLAN
A2.2  SUP GROUND FLOOR PLAN
A2.3 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE WITH TOWN AMENDMENTS
2017 NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE WITH TOWN AMENDMENTS
2018 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CODE
TOWN OF ADDISON CODE OF ORDINANCE

TOWN OF ADDISON APPLICABLE CODES

PROJECT INFORMATION

INTERIOR FINISH OUT -
NO EXTERIOR WORK
14854 MONTFORT ROAD

OCCUPANCY GROUP: A1
CONSTRUCTION TYPE VB

USE: RESTAURANT (EXISTING USE TO REMAIN)

NO EXTERIOR WORK BEING PROPOSED
LANDSCAPE NOTE:
EXISTING LANDSCAPING TO REMAIN
ALL EXISTING LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED AND
IN GOOD LIVING CONDITION BY THE PROPERTY OWNER

VICINITY MAP LOCATION

PARKING ANALYSIS



ELEVATOR

NEW BAR

EXIT

EXIT

PRIVATE DINING

OFFICE

AV CLOS.

STOR.

H.C. RESTROOM

ELEC. CL.

COOLER

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

HI TOP TABLE HI TOP TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

CL
OS

ED
 C

AB
IN
ET

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

SOFA

SEATS

TABLE

HI
 T

OP
 T

AB
LE

HI
 T

OP
 T

AB
LE

OPEN STANDING AREAMECH ROOM

PUMP ROOM

SEATING COUNT
LOUNGE AREA

BAR AREA
PRIVATE DINING
TOTAL SEATS

28 SEATS
33 SEATS
12 SEATS
73 SEATS

BAR AREA

LOUNGE AREA

SQUARE FOOTAGE

DATE

TK
'S

 P
LA

C
E,

 L
LC

SHEET

14
85

4 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D

NOV. 10, 2021
SUP SUBMITTAL

A
D

D
ISO

N
, T

X 
75

25
4

5.
38

8 
A

C
 T

RA
C

T 
IN

 T
HE

 A
LL

EN
 B

LE
D

SO
E

SU
RV

EY
, A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 1

57
, C

ITY
 O

F 
A

D
D

ISO
N

D
A

LL
A

S 
C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S
18

41
-S

UP
TH

O
M

A
S 

W
EB

ER
 A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

78
11

 L
O

VE
RS

 L
A

N
E

D
A

LL
A

S, 
TX

 7
52

25
   

TO
M

@
TH

O
M

A
SW

EB
ER

.C
O

M

TE
N

A
N

T

14
86

0 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D
A

D
D

ISO
N

, T
X 

75
25

4

O
W

N
ER

PR
ES

TO
N

W
O

O
D

 P
O

N
D

TK
O

C
O

M
ED

Y@
G

M
A

IL.
C

O
M

M
IC

HA
EL

@
SA

S-
RE

A
LE

ST
A

TE
.C

O
M

LE
G

A
L 

D
ES

C
RI

PT
IO

N
D

ES
IG

N
 T

EA
M

A2.1
SUP FLOOR PLAN - BASEMENT LEVEL

1/4" = 1'-0"
1



DINING AREA 2

BAR AREA

DINING AREA 1

BOOTH SEATING

ENTRANCE TO
PRIVATE SPACE

OPEN STANDING AREA

RA
MP

 D
NRAILING

STAGE

BOOTH BOOTH

BOOTH BOOTH

BOOTH BOOTH

2 STEPS DN.

EXISTING OPEN
STRUCTURE TO

REMAIN

ENTRY

ELEV.

SEATING COUNT
DINING AREA 1
DINING AREA 2

BAR AREA
OUTDOOR AREA

26 SEATS
56 SEATS
43 SEATS
76 SEATS

OUTDOOR AREA

TOTAL SEATS 201 SEATS

SQUARE FOOTAGE

DATE

TK
'S

 P
LA

C
E,

 L
LC

SHEET

14
85

4 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D

NOV. 10, 2021
SUP SUBMITTAL

A
D

D
ISO

N
, T

X 
75

25
4

5.
38

8 
A

C
 T

RA
C

T 
IN

 T
HE

 A
LL

EN
 B

LE
D

SO
E

SU
RV

EY
, A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 1

57
, C

ITY
 O

F 
A

D
D

ISO
N

D
A

LL
A

S 
C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S
18

41
-S

UP
TH

O
M

A
S 

W
EB

ER
 A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

78
11

 L
O

VE
RS

 L
A

N
E

D
A

LL
A

S, 
TX

 7
52

25
   

TO
M

@
TH

O
M

A
SW

EB
ER

.C
O

M

TE
N

A
N

T

14
86

0 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D
A

D
D

ISO
N

, T
X 

75
25

4

O
W

N
ER

PR
ES

TO
N

W
O

O
D

 P
O

N
D

TK
O

C
O

M
ED

Y@
G

M
A

IL.
C

O
M

M
IC

HA
EL

@
SA

S-
RE

A
LE

ST
A

TE
.C

O
M

LE
G

A
L 

D
ES

C
RI

PT
IO

N
D

ES
IG

N
 T

EA
M

A2.2
SUP FLOOR PLAN - GROUND LEVEL

1/8" = 1'-0"
1



DATE

TK
'S

 P
LA

C
E,

 L
LC

SHEET

14
85

4 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D

NOV. 10, 2021
SUP SUBMITTAL

A
D

D
ISO

N
, T

X 
75

25
4

5.
38

8 
A

C
 T

RA
C

T 
IN

 T
HE

 A
LL

EN
 B

LE
D

SO
E

SU
RV

EY
, A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 1

57
, C

ITY
 O

F 
A

D
D

ISO
N

D
A

LL
A

S 
C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S
18

41
-S

UP
TH

O
M

A
S 

W
EB

ER
 A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

78
11

 L
O

VE
RS

 L
A

N
E

D
A

LL
A

S, 
TX

 7
52

25
   

TO
M

@
TH

O
M

A
SW

EB
ER

.C
O

M

TE
N

A
N

T

14
86

0 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D
A

D
D

ISO
N

, T
X 

75
25

4

O
W

N
ER

PR
ES

TO
N

W
O

O
D

 P
O

N
D

TK
O

C
O

M
ED

Y@
G

M
A

IL.
C

O
M

M
IC

HA
EL

@
SA

S-
RE

A
LE

ST
A

TE
.C

O
M

LE
G

A
L 

D
ES

C
RI

PT
IO

N
D

ES
IG

N
 T

EA
M

A2.3EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NO PROPOSED WORK
3/32" = 1'-0"

1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NO PROPOSED WORK
3/32" = 1'-0"

2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NO PROPOSED WORK
3/32" = 1'-0"

3



EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXIST. TREES TO REMAIN

RE-SEED SCREENING MOUND

DATE

TK
'S

 P
LA

C
E,

 L
LC

SHEET

14
85

4 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D

NOV. 10, 2021
SUP SUBMITTAL

A
D

D
ISO

N
, T

X 
75

25
4

5.
38

8 
A

C
 T

RA
C

T 
IN

 T
HE

 A
LL

EN
 B

LE
D

SO
E

SU
RV

EY
, A

BS
TR

A
C

T 
N

O
. 1

57
, C

ITY
 O

F 
A

D
D

ISO
N

D
A

LL
A

S 
C

O
UN

TY
, T

EX
A

S
18

41
-S

UP
TH

O
M

A
S 

W
EB

ER
 A

RC
HI

TE
C

TU
RE

78
11

 L
O

VE
RS

 L
A

N
E

D
A

LL
A

S, 
TX

 7
52

25
   

TO
M

@
TH

O
M

A
SW

EB
ER

.C
O

M

TE
N

A
N

T

14
86

0 
M

O
N

TF
O

RT
 R

D
A

D
D

ISO
N

, T
X 

75
25

4

O
W

N
ER

PR
ES

TO
N

W
O

O
D

 P
O

N
D

TK
O

C
O

M
ED

Y@
G

M
A

IL.
C

O
M

M
IC

HA
EL

@
SA

S-
RE

A
LE

ST
A

TE
.C

O
M

LE
G

A
L 

D
ES

C
RI

PT
IO

N
D

ES
IG

N
 T

EA
M

L1.0
SUP LANDSCAPE PLAN

1/16" - 1'-0"
1



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 5.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021  

Agenda Caption:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance for Property Located at 14450
Marsh Lane, currently Zoned Local Retail (LR), for a Special Use Permit
(SUP) to allow a Day Nursery. Case 1842-SUP/14450 Marsh Lane (Tierra
Encantada).

Attachments
1842-SUP Staff Report 
1842-SUP Plans 



1842-SUP 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING Case 1842-SUP/14450 Marsh Lane (Tierra Encantada). Hold a 
Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Recommendation regarding 
an Ordinance for Property Located at 14450 Marsh Lane, currently Zoned Local Retail 
(LR), for a Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow a Day Nursery.  
 

LOCATION MAP 
 
 



 

 

 

November 12, 2021 

 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: 1842-SUP/14450 Marsh Lane (Tierra Encantada) 

LOCATION:     14450 Marsh Lane  

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for a day nursery. 
 
APPLICANT:  Amanda Bocchinfuso, M+A Architects  

DISCUSSION:  

Background: A day nursery is proposed in an existing, vacant building located on the east side of 
Marsh Lane, approximately 250 feet north of Spring Valley Road. This property is zoned Local 
Retail (LR) District.  
 
The subject building was previously occupied by an adult education facility, ELS Language 
Center, and a Special Use Permit (SUP) for a day nursery (Brilliance Pre-School, Inc.) was 
previously approved by Ordinance No. 095-043 and amended by Ordinance No. 099-022. These 
uses vacated the property several years ago, and the building has remained vacant since those 
departures. 
 
Tierra Encantada Spanish Immersion Childcare & Preschool is a franchise with 6 existing 
locations in several states. It opened its first location in 2013 and is expected to open 2 locations 
in the Houston area. Tierra Encantada offers childcare for children ranging from 6 weeks to 6 
years of age with a focus on bilingual education that fosters early cognitive development and 
diversity within a curated curriculum.  
 
Proposed Plan:  The applicant is requesting approval of an SUP for a day nursery that would 
occupy the existing building and has proposed improvements to the site, which include the 
addition of playground facilities, landscape improvements, minor building façade improvements, 
and interior renovations.  
 
The floor plan accommodates 10,599 square feet for ten classrooms for the various age ranges, 
(infant, toddler, and preschool) and supporting area which includes an indoor playroom, kitchen, 
administrative offices, and a breakroom. It is anticipated that there will be a maximum of 153 
students and 27 staff members (1 to 2 staff members for each classroom and administrative staff). 
There are two outdoor playground areas, on the north side and west side of the building, that will 
be resurfaced with poured safety surface and playground equipment.  
 
Parking: The Town’s zoning ordinance does not establish required parking for day nursery uses; 
however, the site is sufficiently parking to serve the operations of the business. The site will 
provide a total of 89 parking spaces, which results in a parking ratio of 1 parking space per 120 
square feet of building floor area.  



 
 

 

 
Uses such as day nurseries or schools typically required parking based on assembly area 
(cafeteria, gym, etc.) capacity or anticipated personnel. Given that the school plans to retain 27 
staff members and that parking turnover will be frequent due to most site parking demand being 
generated by student drop off and pickup, Staff believes that the proposed parking will exceed 
parking demand for the site.  
 
Exterior Facades: The existing building is primarily comprised of brick façade materials, which the 
applicant will not be changing. The applicant will be doing some aesthetic and maintenance 
improvements to the exterior of the building by replacing the exiting storefront, doors, and 
windows, removing existing light fixtures mounted along the roof, and repainting an existing walk-
in cooler on the east side of the building.  
 
Landscaping: The landscape plan shows the preservation of existing landscaping, including along 
the Marsh Lane frontage and portions of the landscape buffer to the north and east, adjacent to 
the existing multi-family neighborhoods. At the recommendation of the Town’s landscape 
architect, the landscape buffer that is within the playground area on the north side of the building, 
will be replaced with Nellie R Stevens holly to eliminate potential toxic risk associated with existing 
Red Tip Photinia plantings. Additionally, the applicant is providing landscape area encompassing 
28 percent of the property and will plant additional trees within the parking lot to comply with the 
Town’s landscape ordinance.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS 
 
This new day nursey represents positive reinvestment in the Marsh Lane corridor and will provide 
a needed service to area residents.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the request, subject to the following conditions:  
 

• Existing SUP Ordinance No. O95-043 and amending SUP Ordinance No. O99-022 are 
repealed upon issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the proposed use. 
 

• The applicant shall provide staff with proof of state childcare license prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
 
 



REVIEW DRAWN DATE FILE NUMBER SHEET

2113

CITY OF ADDISON, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

RLGRLG 083

RYAN'S FAMILY STEAK HOUSE-ADDISON
SURVEY ABSTRACT NO. 2001134

BLOCK 1, LOT 1RA, 1.72 ACRES

TIERRA ENCANTADA

14450 MARSH LANE

RLG CONSULTING ENGINEERS
12001 N. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY #300   DALLAS, TX 75243

5601 BRIDGE STREET #420   FORT WORTH, TX 76112
 WWW.RLGINC.COM   TBPE FIRM REG. F-493

11/09/21 C0.01

SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PRIVATE 18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 21" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PRIVATE 18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
IB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.96 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
 7" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 14" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11" ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
 14" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 12" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 11" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 7" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 10" ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 12" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 10" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.99 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.99 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.92 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
 20" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 20" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 26" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 24" OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
 12" ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.89 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.91 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.93 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
 6" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) 14" HACKBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF=573.97 AT DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
 8" ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE STORY BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST  ELEC BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK-IN-COOLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4" CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4" CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PRIVATE 18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST  BPA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSH LANE (100' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1A, BLOCK 1 RYAN'S FAMILY STEAK HOUSE-ADDISON VOLUME 2001134 PAGE 25 D.R.D.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1RA, BLOCK 1 RYAN'S FAMILY STEAK HOUSE-ADDISON 74,672 SQ FT. OR 1.72 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM J. HERRELL VOL. 71071, PG. 1082

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.P. & L. EASEMENT VOL. 85241, PG. 3749 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER EASEMENT VOL. 85241, PG. 3749 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK  VOL. 85241, PG. 3749 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2A, BLOCK 1 RYAN'S FAMILY STEAK HOUSE-ADDISON VOL. 98192, PG. 00007

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSH LANE APARTMENTS VOL. 76203, PG. 1272

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 11-21 & PTLT 22, BLOCK 1 McNEIL REAL ESTATES FUND IX VOL. 80010, PG. 2766

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1RB, BLOCK 1 RYAN'S FAMILY STEAK HOUSE-ADDISON 19,790 SQ FT. OR 0.45 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
14450 MARSH LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
14430 MARSH LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LR-2 LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LR-72 LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LR-72 LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LR-2 LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LR-2 LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LR-72 LOCAL RETAIL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 6'  METAL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 6'  WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 6'  WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' HIGH COMPOSITE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST SS SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST SS SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST SS SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
252.64'± TO SPRING VALLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" SS  MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" WTR  MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST  CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST  CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' HIGH COMPOSITE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAYGROUND AREA ON POURED SAFETY SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST  CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
14500 MARSH LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
14412 MARSH LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3709 SPRING VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST GREASE INTERCEPTOR TO REMAIN OWNER TO VERIFY CODE COMPLIANCE & CONDITION AND REPLACE IF NECESSARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' HIGH  COMPOSITE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP 4" FIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA/TAS COMPLIANT BUILDING ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
400'x15' VISIBILTY TRIANGLE PER ADDISON STDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,599 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST BRICK SCREENING WALL HEIGHT=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST SHED TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST GAS SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" WTR MAIN PER SHADOWOOD APTS RECORD DRAWINGS DATED 1976

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STRIPING IN THIS AREA TO BE REMOVED AND RESTRIPED AS SHOWN. (4 EXISTING PARKING SPACES REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WATER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x4" TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 2" DOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP REMOTE FDC W/ BOLLARD PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST  CONC PVMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAYGROUND AREA ON POURED SAFETY SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING SETBACK  VOL. 85241, PG. 3749 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK  VOL. 85241, PG. 3749 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST 6' METAL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STRIPING IN THIS AREA TO BE REMOVED AND RESTRIPED AS SHOWN. (3 EXISTING PARKING SPACES REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Civil\2021\2113.083 TE Addison Zoning Assistance\6 - Project Drawings\C0.01 SITE PLAN.dwg; 11/9/2021 4:38:06 PM; Cecena, Edgar; 11/9/2021 4:38:06 PM; Cecena, Edgar11/9/2021 4:38:06 PM; Cecena, Edgar; Cecena, EdgarCecena, Edgar

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARKS: BM#1: SQUARE CUT ON THE WEST END OF A MEDIAN NOSE, CENTER OF BELT LINE ROAD, 50'± EAST OF OF BELT LINE ROAD. AS SHOWN. ELEVATION=620.16' BM#2: SQUARE CUT ON THE WEST END OF A MEDIAN NOSE, CENTER OF BELT LINE ROAD, DIRECTLY NORTH OF "LA MADELINE" AT PRESTONWOOD PLACE DRIVEWAY, 550'± EAST OF MONTFORT DRIVE. AS SHOWN. ELEVATION=598.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(FEET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
550

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ EASEMENT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ STORM SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ DEED RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELC

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ ELECTRIC CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GT

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ GREASE TRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ ELECTRIC BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR#

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ AREA DRAIN AND SIZE IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SUMMARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACES PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACES REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RATIO REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STALL SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AISLE WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL SITE DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA SUMMARY TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.72 ACRES (74,672 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:120

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'x18.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.0' MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES: 1. Any revision to this plan will require Town approval Any revision to this plan will require Town approval    and will require revisions to any corresponding plans    to avoid conflicts between plans. 2. Open storage, where permitted, shall be screened Open storage, where permitted, shall be screened in accordance with the Zoning Ordinance. 3. Buildings with an aggregate sum of 5,000 square Buildings with an aggregate sum of 5,000 square feet or greater on a lot shall have automatic fire sprinklers installed throughout all structures. Alternative fire protection measures may be approved by the Fire Department. 4. All signage is subject to Town approval. All signage is subject to Town approval. 5. All fences and retaining walls shall be shown on All fences and retaining walls shall be shown on the site plan and are subject to Building Inspection Division approval.   

AutoCAD SHX Text
This plan conforms with design standards included in the Town of Addison Transportation Plan, Water System Requirements, Waste Water System Requirements, and Drainage Criteria Manual.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX 19'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: Handicap parking is provided in accordance with ADA standards.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL BUILDING SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,599 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING USE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-4 DAYCARE FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO FLOODPLAIN EXISTS ON THIS SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USEABLE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ FIRE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
57,317 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESTWICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 URST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brookhaven

AutoCAD SHX Text
Country Club

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LACS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HI

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANGLEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
Creek

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARBOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLYMPIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ TRAFFIC SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LR-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: TIERRA ENCANTADA KRISTEN DENZER 2700 30TH AVE S MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55406 (612)398-7479 ARCHITECT: M+A ARCHITECTS AMANDA BOCCHINFUSO. PMP 775 YARD STREET SUITE 325 COLUMBUS, OH 43212 (614)764-0407 CIVIL ENGINEER: RLG CONSULTING ENGINEERS PHILLIP BRUGGER, PE 12001 N. CENTRAL EXP. SUITE 300 DALLAS, TEXAS 75243 (214)739-8100

AutoCAD SHX Text
........ ACCESSIBLE ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USEABLE OPEN SPACE REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
21,480 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,934 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
14430 MARSH LANE-GOLDEN CHICK PARKING SUMMARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACES PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RATIO REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:70

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOSITE FENCE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



HIST
E C

CT
TE

SA

ET

S
TA

I
RE
G

71

OF

1 2
ET
X

RLDRE
CAANDS EP A

I

KENDA
LM

CH
AE
L

L

STEPH NE

Sheet Number

Sheet Name

Issue Date

Revisions

Seal

T
ie

r
r

a
 E

n
c

a
n

ta
d

a
 S

U
P

A
d

d
is

o
n

, T
e

x
a

s

11-9-21

OWNER
TIERRA ENCANTADA
KRISTEN DENZER
2700 30TH AVE S
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55406
612-398-7479

CIVIL
RLG CONSULTING ENGINEER
PHILLIP BRUGER, PE
12001 N. CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
SUITE 300
DALLAS, TEXAS 75243
214-739-8100

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
MICHAEL S. KENDALL  ASLA
KENDALL + LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
6976 SANTA BARBARA
DALLAS, TEXAS 75214
214-739-3226



V
.I
.F

.

 
 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

  
1

6
' 
- 

6
"

V
.I
.F

.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

  
 1

9
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

© 2021, M+A Architects   |   artistic illustration only - not for construction

11/10/21

TIERRA ENCANTADA - ADDISON, TX
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

SK-3

2021.332

1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES

1.  NEW STOREFRONT WITH CENTERED DOUBLED DOOR 

     IN EXISTING OPENING, TO MATCH EXISTING 
     STOREFRONT.

2.  NEW STOREFRONT DOORS TO REPLACE EXISTING.

3.  EXISTING SERVICE DOOR TO BE REPLACED WITH 
     HOLLOW METAL DOOR WITH GLASS SIDELITE.

4.  EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURES ALONG ROOF LINE TO BE 
     REMOVED.

5.  NEW EXTERIOR ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTER SIGN
     TO BE PROVIDED.

6.  EXISTING EXTERIOR MOUNTED ROOF LADDER TO BE 
     REPLACED WITH NEW GATE PROTECTED ROOF 
     LADDER, IN PLACE OF EXISTING.

7.  EXISTING RAILING TO REMAIN AND BE REPAINTED.

8.  EXISTING WALK-IN COOLER TO REMAIN AND BE 
     REPAINTED.

9.  ALTERNATE OPTION FOR ADDITIONAL STOREFRONT 
     GLAZING TO MATCH EXISTING.

10.  EXISTING BRICK SCREEN WALL TO REMAIN

11.  EXISTING BRICK FACADE TO REMAIN.

12.  EXISTING SHINGLED ROOF TO REMAIN.

1

2 23

5

5

6

6

8

9 10

11

11

11 11

12

12

FACADE PLAN NOTES

A.  THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSE  

     ONLY.  ALL BUILDING PLANS REQUIRE REVIEW AND 
     APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES..

B.  ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM
     PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED BY THE ZONING 
     ORDINANCE.

C.  WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND 
     CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE 
     BUILDING.

D.  ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT
     TO APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.

E.  ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED PER 2018 IBC 
     1011.12, EXCEPTION 1.

10

14450 MARSH LANE
ADDISON, TX 75001

PROJECT NUMBER: 1842-SUP

APPLICANT:                 TIERRA ENCANTADA  
                                       KRISTEN DENZER, OWNER & CEO
                                       2700 30TH AVE. S.
                                       MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55406
                                       P:  612-398-7479

PROPERTY OWNER:    SM&RG, LLC
                                        SADRUDDIN GILLANI
                                        2221 GATSBY WAY
                                        CARROLLTON, TX 75010
                                        P:  469-939-4188

ARCHITECT:      M+A ARCHITECTS  
                          AMANDA BOCCHINFUSO, PMP (PROJECT MGR)
                          775 YARD ST., STE 325
                          COLUMBUS, OH 43212
                          P:  614-764-0407
 
CIVIL:                RLG
                          EDGAR CECENA, EIT (PROJECT MGR)
                          12001 N. CENTRAL EXP, STE 300
                          DALLAS, TX 75243
                          P:  214-739-8100

7
8

10



W/D W/D W/D

SK-3

2

SK-3 1

SK-34

8 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

INFANT

363 SF / 43 =

1:4 RATIO =

107

57 SF

CLIENT RR

105 SF

OFFICE

8 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

INFANT

375 SF / 43 =

1:4 RATIO =

106

8 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

INFANT

375 SF / 43 =

1:4 RATIO =

105

23 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

PRESCHOOL

826 SF / 35 =

1:15 RATIO =

108

45 SF

RR

76 SF

JANITORS
CLOSET

37 SF

UTILITY
CLOSET

153 SF

BREAKROOM

80 SF

LAUNDRY

23 SF

CLOSET

61 SF

SHOWER /
STAFF RR

16 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

TODDLER

590 SF / 35 =

1:9 RATIO =

120

16 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

TODDLER

560 SF / 35 =

1:9 RATIO =

122

22 STUDENTS

1 STAFF

PRESCHOOL

771 SF / 35 =

1:15 RATIO =

124

8 STUDENTS

2 STAFF

INFANT

354 SF / 43 =

1:4 RATIO =

104

CAR SEATS

533 SF

INDOOR PLAY

125
22 STUDENTS

1 STAFF

PRESCHOOL

770 SF / 35 =

1:15 RATIO =

123

22 STUDENTS

1 STAFF

PRESCHOOL

770 SF / 35 =

1:15 RATIO =

121

74 SF

MECHANICAL
ROOM

311 SF

KITCHEN

47 SF

RR

354 SF

LOBBY

1,314 SF

CORRIDOR

73 SF

RR

73 SF

RR

** GC TO VERIFY (E) COLUMN & BEAM TO BE REMOVED IS 
NON-BUILDING STRUCTURE AND CAN BE REMOVED WITH THE 
ASSOCIATED VIEWING WINDOWS TO BE REMOVED.

**

**

47 SF

RR

28 SF

CLOSET

47 SF

RR

(E) SLOPE

(E) W.I.C.

SK-3

3

© 2021, M+A Architects   |   artistic illustration only - not for construction

11/01/21

TIERRA ENCANTADA - ADDISON, TX
FLOOR PLAN

SK-1

2021.332

1/8" = 1'-0"

floor plan

FLOOR PLAN NOTES

1.  ALTERNATE OPTION FOR ADDITIONAL STOREFRONT 
     GLAZING TO MATCH EXISTING.

2.  NEW FIRE RISER TO BE LOCATED IN EXISTING 
     MECHANICAL ROOM.

3.  NEW STOREFRONT WITH CENTERED DOUBLED DOOR
     IN EXISTING OPENING, TO MATCH EXISTING 
     STOREFRONT.

4.  NEW STOREFRONT DOORS TO REPLACE EXISTING.

5.  EXISTING SERVICE DOOR TO BE REPLACED WITH 
     HOLLOW METAL DOOR WITH GLASS SIDELITE.

6.  EXISTING TRASH COMPACTOR TO BE REMOVED AND 
     REPLACED WITH DUMPSTER.  EXISTING TRUCK        
     WELL TO REMAIN.

7.  EXISTING WALK-IN COOLER TO REMAIN AND BE 
     REPAINTED.

8.  EXISTING EXTERIOR MOUNTED ROOF LADDER TO BE
     REPLACED WITH NEW GATE PROTECTED ROOF 
     LADDER, IN PLACE OF EXISTING.

14450 MARSH LANE
ADDISON, TX 75001

PROJECT NUMBER: 1842-SUP

APPLICANT:                 TIERRA ENCANTADA  
                                       KRISTEN DENZER, OWNER & CEO
                                       2700 30TH AVE. S.
                                       MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55406
                                       P:  612-398-7479

PROPERTY OWNER:    SM&RG, LLC
                                        SADRUDDIN GILLANI
                                        2221 GATSBY WAY
                                        CARROLLTON, TX 75010
                                        P:  469-939-4188

ARCHITECT:      M+A ARCHITECTS  
                          AMANDA BOCCHINFUSO, PMP (PROJECT MGR)
                          775 YARD ST., STE 325
                          COLUMBUS, OH 43212
                          P:  614-764-0407
 
CIVIL:                RLG
                          EDGAR CECENA, EIT (PROJECT MGR)
                          12001 N. CENTRAL EXP, STE 300
                          DALLAS, TX 75243
                          P:  214-739-8100

1

2

3

4

4

5

6

7

8

BUILDING GSF:   10,150 SF*
* REFER TO SK-2 FOR INFORMATION REGARDING AREA & DESIGN OCCUPANT LOAD

PLAYGROUND AREA:   7,310 SF

TOTAL NUMBER OF CHILDREN:  152 CHILDREN

TOTAL NUMBER OF STAFF:  27 STAFF

11/10/21



   
Planning & Zoning Commission 6.           
Meeting Date: 11/16/2021  

Agenda Caption:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a 
Recommendation regarding an Ordinance for a 5.11-acre Property Located
at the Southeast Corner of Spring Valley Road and Vitruvian Way, currently
zoned Planned Development (PD) through Ordinance No. O07-034 as
amended by Ordinance No. O16-017, to Amend the Concept Plan and
Approving a Development Plan with Waivers to the Development
Standards, including but not limited to, Street Build-To Line, Exterior
Building Material, and Building Color Standards for a Multi-Family
Development Comprised of 85 Dwelling Units and Associated Amenity
Space. Case 1839-Z/Vitruvian Townhomes.

Attachments
1839-Z Staff Report 
1839-Z Plans 



1839-Z 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1839-Z/Vitruvian Townhomes. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, 
Discuss, and Consider Action on a Recommendation regarding an Ordinance, for a 5.11-
acre Property Located at the Southeast Corner of Spring Valley Road and Vitruvian Way, 
currently zoned Planned Development (PD) through Ordinance No. O07-034 as amended 
by Ordinance No. O16-017, to Amend the Concept Plan and Approving a Development 
Plan with Waivers to the Development Standards, including but not limited to, Street 
Build-To Line, Exterior Building Material, and Building Color Standards for a Multi-Family 
Development Comprised of 85 Dwelling Units and Associated Amenity Space.   
 

Location Map 



 

   

 

 

 

November 12, 2021  

STAFF REPORT 

RE: 1839-Z/Vitruvian Townhomes 

LOCATION: 5.11 acres at the southeast corner of Spring Valley 
Road and Vitruvian Way and north of Bella Lane. 

REQUEST: Amendment of the Concept Plan established by 
Planned Development (PD) District Ordinance No. 
O16-017 and approval of a Development Plan with 
waivers to the development standards, including but 
not limited to, street build-to line, exterior building 
material, and building color standards. 

 
APPLICANT:  UDR, Inc. 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: On October 9, 2007, UDR obtained approval to rezone approximately 99-acres 

south of Spring Valley Road, east of Marsh Lane, and north of Brookhaven College, to Planned 

Development District (PD), Ordinance No. 007-034. Six years later in 2013, the zoning for the 

project was expanded to include an additional 21.7 acres, which included the Brookhaven Village 

Shopping Center and the subject property situated at the southeast corner of Spring Valley Road 

and Vitruvian Way, with the approval of Ordinance No. O13-026.  

Then in 2016, Ordinance No. O16-017 was approved, which amended the concept plan to 

incorporate additional retail and office within the development. The uses and development 

standards associated with the PD were also modified to allow for the revised concept plan.  

This PD requires that prior to the issuance of a building permit for any development within the 

district, a development plan for the project must be approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and the City Council.  

This request is two-fold; an amendment to the concept plan to allow for a lower density multi-

family development (townhome form) at the southeast corner of Spring Valley Road and Vitruvian 

Way, designated as block 217 in the Vitruvian Park concept plan, and to consider approval of a 

development plan for the proposed multifamily development.  

 

Proposed Plan: The proposed development plan includes 85 three-story multifamily units, 

designed in a townhome form, and an amenity area near the center of the site. The unit mix 



2 
 

 

ranges from one to three bedrooms units with an average unit size of 1,927 square feet. A two-

car garage is provided for each unit at the ground level.  

 

The proposed development meets the intent of the urban form standards of the Vitruvian Park 

neighborhood by engaging the surrounding street network with buildings and providing patios and 

stoops at the ground floor. Townhome buildings internal to the site will front onto landscaped 

common areas to maximize social activity and pedestrian connectivity within the project. Along 

the eastern boundary of the property, an 8 foot trail connecting Bella Lane to Spring Valley Road 

will be constructed in accordance with the Town’s Trails Master Plan.  

 

The amenity center and pool will be constructed in conjunction with the townhome buildings and 

is centrally located in the development, with direct visibility from Vitruvian Way. The amenity 

building is 2,753 square feet and will contain the leasing office, mail room, and workout facility, 

and will provide access to the community pool amenity that will be accommodated immediately 

to the east. The design of these buildings is intended to be a modern esthetic with the use of a 

grey and white color scheme. 

 

Development Plan: As part of this request, the Planning & Zoning Commission must consider 

approval of the development plan, which is a ministerial process required by the PD. The purpose 

of the development approval process is to review the proposal in context of the zoning and 

development standards for the site.  

 

The following sections of the staff report will address development plan compliance with each 

section of the PD ordinance.  

 

Uses: The applicant is proposing 85 multi-family dwelling units. The proposed use is permitted by 

right on this property. 

 

Development Standards: Development standards regulate the setbacks, building heights, lot 

sizes, and square footages of certain uses. The development plan complies with these 

development standards, except as outlined below: 

 

Street Build-to Line: The development standards require that at least 70% of all buildings 

(including walls and fences) be at the build-to line along Vitruvian Way and Bella Lane. 

The buildings comply with the build-to zone required along Bella Lane, a type C street, 

which requires the building to be situated between 6 and 9 feet from the street-facing 

property boundary. However, along Vitruvian Way, a type A street, there is a build-to line 

of 9 feet from the property boundary. Due to the curvature of the street and the sidewalk 

being accommodated within the property, some of these buildings fronting Vitruvian Way 

are setback further than 9 feet.  

 

The proposal does not fully comply with the street build-to line standard for Vitruvian Way 

and the applicant is requesting a waiver for this design consideration.  

 



3 
 

 

Minimum area per dwelling unit: The development standards establish the following 

minimum unit size criteria: 

• Efficiency: 450 square feet 

• One-Bedroom: 600 square feet 

• Two-Bedroom: 850 square feet 

• Three-Bedroom: 1,000 square feet 

 

The development plans show 4 unit types ranging from one bedroom up to three bedroom 

units. All unit types comply with the minimum requirements with the smallest unit size 

being 1,500 square feet and the largest accommodating 2,228 square feet. The proposed 

development plan meets the minimum area per dwelling unit standard in the ordinance.  

 

Open Space: Open space is required with residential uses and is calculated to require two acres 

for every 1,000 residents up to 2,250 and then 1.5 acres per 1,000 residents above 2,250. The 

ordinance assumes 1.5 persons per unit. This proposal would increase the units to a total of 

2,291, which would require 3.19 acres of open space. The applicant has already dedicated 12 

acres for Vitruvian Park, which would serve the residents in this proposed development. The 

proposed development plan meets the minimum open space requirements in the ordinance. 

 

Parking: The ordinance requires that one parking space be provided per bedroom with a 

maximum required of two spaces per unit. For the proposed 85 units, a minimum of 151 parking 

spaces are required and a total of 215 parking spaces are being provided. Parking will consist of 

two spaces in a private garage per unit, 22 tandem spaces, and 23 surface spaces. The proposed 

development plan complies with the parking requirements in the ordinance. 

 

Streetscapes: The proposal anticipates improvements to Bella Lane with the addition of a 6-foot 

sidewalk and modifications to on-street parking. Street improvements on Vitruvian Way are 

existing and according to the type A street standards. The proposed development plan complies 

with the streetscape requirements in the ordinance. 

 

Exterior Appearance: The buildings are required to have 80% masonry construction on all sides 

visible or fronting a public street, a maximum of three building materials (excluding glass), and 

the dominant color be muted colors. The proposed façade plans include four materials: stucco, 

brick, fiber cement siding, and metal paneling.  

 

The ordinance defines masonry construction as including, but not limited to, brick, stone, cultured 

stone, glazing/plate glass, and split face CMU. While all buildings accommodate brick on all sides 

of the buildings, the primary façade material is stucco, which accounts for over 50 percent of most 

elevations facing the street. The color of the proposed stucco is primarily SW Extra White. The 

PD ordinance only allows the use of stark white as an accent color, limiting its use to less than 

1% of the building face. The applicant desires to use SW Extra White to provide a contrast with 

the gray building materials, creating a modern esthetic.  

 



4 
 

 

Stucco has previously been considered as masonry construction for other multi-family 

developments in the Vitruvian Park neighborhood. With the “masonry construction” definition not 

calling out stucco as a masonry material, this condition should be formally addressed through the 

waiver process. Staff believes that stucco should be considered as masonry construction, as it is 

prominent material in Vitruvian and the design of this project is compatible with the overall 

character of the district. Stucco is typically viewed as an acceptable building façade material by 

other municipalities in the region as well. 

 

Additionally, the PD ordinance requires any balcony or patio railing/fencing to be constructed of 

wrought iron or metal. The proposal shows the patio for each unit being enclosed by a 3.5-foot 

tall stone wall with a metal entry gate.  

 

The development plan does not fully comply with the exterior appearance requirements in the 

ordinance and the applicant has requested the following waivers: 

 

• Exceeding the maximum number of façade materials 

• Accounting for stucco as masonry construction 

• Utilizing SW Extra White as a primary façade color 

• Utilizing masonry materials in lieu of wrought iron or metal, for the patio enclosure 

 

Landscape: The landscaping regulations in the ordinance govern the street edge as well as 

private landscaping. The proposal anticipates installation of street trees, street lighting, and street 

furnishings in accordance with the designated street types. The ground floor frontages for each 

unit will be landscaped between the edge of sidewalk and building and private outdoor patios will 

use artificial turf. Further design consideration will be required to account for maintenance of the 

artificial turf, during civil plan review. The plan has been reviewed by the Parks Department and 

no issues were identified.  The proposed development plan complies with the landscape 

requirements in the ordinance. 

 

Sustainability: The PD ordinance includes a variety of suggestions for a more environmentally 

conscious development. The proposal indicates that it will incorporate many of the sustainable 

aspects noted in the ordinance. The proposed development plan complies with the sustainability 

guidelines in the ordinance. 

 

Screening: The PD ordinance requires that mechanical equipment as well as loading, service, 

and trash storage areas be screened from view of all public roadways. The applicant’s landscape 

plan accommodates required screening for mechanical equipment throughout the site. The 

dumpster is oriented away from the street and will be in a masonry enclosure with a metal gate 

and additional landscape screening. The proposed development plan complies with the screening 

requirements of the ordinance. 

 

Flexible standards: The ordinance grants the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 

the authority to approve waivers from the standards included in the ordinance. The applicant is 

requesting the following waivers: 



5 
 

 

 

• Exceeding the 9 foot street build-to-line for segments of Vitruvian Way 

• Exceeding the maximum number of façade materials 

• Accounting for stucco as “masonry construction” 

• Utilizing SW Extra White as a primary façade color 

• Utilizing masonry materials in lieu of wrought iron or metal, for the patio enclosure 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 

 

The proposed Vitruvian Townhomes will provide a unique housing option in Vitruvian Park through 

the introduction of rental townhome units. The proposed character and quality of design is 

consistent with the Vitruvian Park neighborhood and will provide a strong gateway to the 

development.  

 

Staff is supportive of the waivers to the development standards requested with this development 
plan based on the following considerations: 
 

• The build-to line requirement is difficult to achieve due to the existing curvature of Vitruvian 
Way. Having the buildings setback further at this location creates additional landscaped 
area, adding visual interest to the project. 
 

• Stucco is an appropriate façade material for this building type and categorizing it as 
masonry construction is consistent with past treatment of Vitruvian Park projects. 
Municipalities in the region typically consider stucco to be an acceptable building façade 
material. 

 

• The proposed white coloring as a primary façade color as well as the use of four or more 
materials is targeted towards achieving a more modern design aesthetic, which is 
compatible with the adjacent Fiore development. 
 

• While the use of masonry materials in lieu of a metal fence reduces transparency for the 
patio enclosure, the impact of that will be limited, as the fences are only 3.5 feet tall. The 
masonry cladding achieves a unique design that will add visual interest to the streetscape. 

 

Staff recommends approval subject to no conditions.  



VITRUVIAN PARK MASTER PLANAPRIL 8, 2016

BLOCK 101

Residential 392 Units

Retail 13,000 SF

BLOCK 102

Residential 347 Units

Retail 17,000 SF

Office 17,000 SF

BLOCK 103

Residential 391 Units

BLOCK 201

Residential 383 Units

BLOCK 202

Residential 300 Units

BLOCK 203

Residential 340 Units

BLOCK 204

Office 130,000 SF

Retail (Below) 18000 SF

BLOCK 205

Retail (Below) 40,000 SF

Office (Above) 18,000 SF

Residential 31 Units

BLOCK 206

Hotel (Above) 200 Keys

Retail (Below) 14,000 SF

BLOCK 207

Residential 310 Units

BLOCK 208

Residential 146 Units

BLOCK 209

Office (Above) 24,000 SF

Retail (Below) 25,000 SF

Entertainment 45,000 SF

BLOCK 210

Office (Above) 152,000 SF

Retail (Below) 35,000 SF

BLOCK 211

Retail 87,000 SF

BLOCK 213

Residential 298 Units

BLOCK 214

Residential 338 Units

BLOCK 215

Residential 265 Units

BLOCK 216

Residential 382 Units

BLOCK 217

Residential 396 Units

BLOCK 301

Residential 411 Units

BLOCK 302

Residential 541 Units

BLOCK 303

Residential 290 Units

TOTAL

Residential 5561 Units

Retail 300,000 SF

Office 350,000 SF

0 20050

HH

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\
\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\
\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\ \\ \\ \\ \\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\
\\

\\

\\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\

\\
\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\\\\\

\\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\

\\
\\

IN
X FT

X

IN
X FT X

IN
X

FT
X

IN
X

FT
X

IN
X

FTX

IN
X

FTX

\\

\\

\\

65" TV

30x48

30x48

30x48

30x48

30x48

30x48

48X48

54X60

48X

48

54X

60

54X60

48

X

48

54

X

60

30x48

FLORENCE

4CADD-10CS

FL

O

R

E

N

C

E

4C

A

D

D

-1

0C

S

FLORENCE

4CADD-10CS

FLORENCE

4CADD-10CS

FLORENCE

4CADD-10CS

FLO

R

E

N

C

E

4C

A

D

D

-10C

S

FLO

R

E

N

C

E

4C

A

D

D

-10C

S

FLORENCE

4CADD-10CS

FL

O

R

E

N

C

E

4C

A

D

D

-1

0C

S

30x48

30x48

30x48

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LIN

E

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LIN

E

VI
TR

UV
IA

N
 W

AY

TR
A

SH

D
O

G
RU

N

BELLA LANE

PO
O

L

A
M

EN
IT

Y
BU

ILD
IN

G

FIR
E 

LA
N

E

FIR
E 

LA
N

E

PR
IV

A
TE

 Y
A

RD
S

85 Units

5,357 Units

BLOCK 217
85 UNITS

405 Units

366 Units

BLOCK 203
366 UNITS

BLOCK 202
405 UNITS

BLOCK 101
SAVOYE

394 UNITS

394 Units

351 Units

BLOCK 102
SAVOYE II
351 UNITS

BLOCK 103
FIORI

392 UNITS

392 Units



NORTH0' 40' 80' 160'

857'-5"
OVERALL LOT

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\

\

\\

\
\

\
\

\\

\

\

\

\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

\
\

IN
X

FT
X

IN
X

FT
X

IN XFTX

IN
X

FTX

IN
X

FT
X

IN
X

FT
X

F

I

R

E

 

L

A

N

E

FIRE LANE

65
" T

V

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

4

8

X

4

8

5

4

X

6

0

4

8

X

4

8

5

4

X

6

0

5

4

X

6

0

4

8

X

4

8

5

4

X

6

0

3

0

x

4

8

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-

1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-

1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-

1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-

1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-

1

0

C

S

F

L

O

R

E

N

C

E

4

C

A

D

D

-1

0

C

S

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

3

0

x

4

8

VITRUVIAN WAY

BE
LL

A 
LA

N
E

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PRIVATE
YARDS

AMENITY

POOL

DOG RUN

SP
RI

N
G

 V
A

LL
EY

PROPERTY LINE

44
4'

-1
1

3 8
"

O
VE

RA
LL

 L
O

T

PROPERTY
LINE

TRASH

TOWN OF ADDISON
TRAIL SYSTEM

TOWN OF ADDISON
TRAIL SYSTEM

BUILD-TO-LINE
& PUBLIC ACCESS

EASEMENT

BUILD-TO-LINE
& PUBLIC ACCESS
EASEMENT

BUILD-TO-LINE
& PUBLIC ACCESS
EASEMENT

9'
-0

"
SI

D
EW

AL
K

EA
SE

M
EN

T

6'-0"

6'-0"

9'
-0

"

1
1
'-0

"
SI

D
EW

A
LK

EA
SE

M
EN

T

7'-0"

24
'-0

"

24'-0"

24
'-0

"

24'-0"

2
4
'-0

"

24'-0"

24'-0"

24
'-0

"

18"
RETAINING
WALL

PRIVATE YARDS
WITH STONE WALL

9'
-0

" 18'-0"

18
'-6

"

9'-0" 9'
-0

"18'-0"

22
'-0

"

8'-0"

9
'-0

"

18'-0"

22'-0"

8
'-0

"

9'-0"

18
'-0

"

Maximum 9'-0"

to build-to-line

PROPERTY LINE

Maximum 9'-0"

to build-to-line

4'-2 3
4 "

4'-2 3
4 "

PROPERTY LINEALL UNITS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH
VALET TRASH COLLECTION

PRIVATE YARDS
WITH STONE WALL

PRIVATE YARDS
WITH STONE WALL

N
89
°
50

'2
3"

W
20

.7
8

N
63
°

42
'0

0"
W

 3
91

.9
1

N26
°22'15"E 290.48

N00°15'46"E 104.90

N
89
°
50

'1
6"

E 
14

1.
87

S00°07'24"E 857.37

25' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

10' UNDER-
GROUND
ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

5' UNDER-
GROUND
ELECTRIC
EASEMENT

25' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

5' T.P. & L EASEMENT
10' UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

5' UNDER-
GROUND
ELECTRIC

EASEMENT

10' UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

15' WATER &
SEWER EASEMENT

5' UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

5' UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

ELECTRIC EASEMENT

ELECTRIC EASEMENT
ELECTRIC EASEMENT

25' WATER
& SEWER
EASEMENTBIKE RACKS

FOR (4) BICYCLE
PARKING SPACES

No.

Issues and Revisions:

Date Issues

Wilder Belshaw Project Number:  1901

Drawing Name:

3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

UDR

Addison, Texas

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

Project Owner:

Sheet Number:

Addison, TX 75001

Contact Information:
Robert P. St. John
(720) 348-7722

RStJohn@udr.com

own
itruvian

T
V

Civil:

2840 W Southlake Blvd #110

Icon Consulting Engineers, Inc.

Southlake, TX 76092

(817) 552-6210 

09.03.2101 Site Submittal

omesH

10.11.2102 City Comments
11.01.2103 City Comments
11.09.2104 City Comments

SCALE:  1"=40'
DEVELOPMENT PLAN06 A101

Vicinity Map (NTS)

ADDISON  SITE PLAN NOTES

1. Any revision to this plan will require Town

approval and will require revisions to any

corresponding plans to avoid conflicts between

plans.

2. Open storage, where permitted, shall be

screened in accordance with the Zoning

Ordinance.

3. All Buildings on a lot shall have automatic fire

sprinklers installed throughout all structures.

Alternative fire protection measures may be

approved by the Fire Department.

4. All signage is subject to Town approval.

5. All fences and retaining walls shall be shown

on the site plan and are subject to Building

Inspection Division approval.

All mechanical equipment shall be screened

per Ordinance NO. 016-017, #13. Refer to

Landscape for screening materials and

dimensions.

The development meets the sustainability

requirements per Ordinance NO. 016-017,

Exhibit F.

This project complies with Town of Addison

applicable codes including 2018 ICC-codes

and 2017 NEC

ZONING: PD

Addison, TX

Town Project #_________

BLOCK_________

VP 217   5.112 acres

ACTION

APPROVED DENIED

STAFF __________________ _____

Date Initials

COUNCIL _________________ _____

Date Initials

See the Staff Approval Letter or Council Result Memo for any

conditions associated with the approval of the project.

1839-Z

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Lot Coverage Max Building Height

Lot Size:

Building Footprint Totals:

Parking Lot SF Total:

% of building lot coverage:

% of parking lot coverage:

% of total lot coverage:

222,706.00

81,783

66,210.1

37%

30%

66%

Zoning : PD 007-034 as amended by 016-017

Open Space SF : 37,694

To Top of Roof :  43'- 8"

Unit Mix

Vitruvian Town Homes - Addison, TX

Site size:

Density:

Unit Type

Min. Floor Area

5.11

# of bedrooms

16.63

222,706

A1

1 Bedroom

1,500 SF

19

28,500 SF

B1

5

B2

1,880 SF

26

C1

2 Bedroom      2 Bedroom       3 Bedroom

1,686 SF 2,228 SF

35

8,430 SF       48,880 SF        77,980 SF

2,753 SF - AMENITY SPACE

163,790 SF - NET RENTABLE (RESIDENTIAL)

222,452 SF - GROSS

85 UNITS

1,927 SF AVERAGE

1,500 SF - Smallest Unit

2,228 SF - Largest Unit

PARKING REQUIRED

1 per 1BR Unit

2 per 2BR Unit

2 per 3BR Unit

TOTAL req'd

PARKING PROVIDED

170 Private Garage Spaces

22 Tandem Spaces

2 Accessible Spaces

21 Off Street Surface Spaces

215 spaces provided

4 Bicycle Parking spaces

2.53 Spaces per Unit

Note: Handicap

parking is provided

in accordance with

ADA standards.

19

62

70

151

1 BR UNITS 19

2 BR UNITS 31

3 BR UNITS 35

22.4%

36.5%

41.2%

85 Total Units

Wilder Belshaw Architects Inc.

1st November 2021

217



SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" (22"X34" SHEET)

02 SQUARE FOOTAGE:  172 S.F.UNIT A1-Level 01

21'-0"

3
5

'-6
"

GARAGE

PATIO

W/H

MUDROOM
STORAGE

UNIT

ENTRY

MECH.

04 SQUARE FOOTAGE:  663 S.F.UNIT A1-Level 02

21'-0"

3
2

'-6
"

POWDER

LIVING

KITCHEN

06 SQUARE FOOTAGE:  663 S.F.UNIT A1-Level 03

21'-0"

3
2

'-6
"

BEDROOM

BATH

UTILITY CLOS.

WINE
COOLER

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE:1,500 S.F.

ROOF
BELOW4

'-0
"

4
'-0

"

4
'-0

"

BALCONY

PANTRY

3
'-0

"

KEY PLAN : UNIT LOCATIONS

V

I

T

R

U

V

I

A

N

 

W

A

Y

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
V

A
L
L
E

Y

B

E

L

L

A

 

L

A

N

E

CLOSET

DINING

ROOF
BELOW

BUILT-IN
SHELVES MECH.

CHASE

A201

UNITS
Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" (22"X34" SHEET)

02 SQUARE FOOTAGE:  551 S.F.UNIT B1-Level 01

21'-0"

4
9
'-8

"

04 SQUARE FOOTAGE:  1,021 S.F.UNIT B1-Level 02

21'-0"

4
9
'-8

"

06 SQUARE FOOTAGE:  114 S.F.UNIT B1-Level 03

21'-0"

4
9
'-8

"

GARAGE

W/H

MUDROOM
STORAGE

UNIT

ENTRY

BEDROOM 1

CLOSET 1

BATH 2

BEDROOM 2

CLOSET 2

MECH

POWDER

PA
N

TR
Y

WINE
COOLER

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE:1,686 S.F.

KITCHEN

LIVING

BATH 1

TERRACE

V

I

T

R

U

V

I

A

N

 

W

A

Y

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
V

A
L

L
E

Y

B

E

L

L

A

 

L

A

N

E

KEY PLAN : UNIT LOCATIONS

WET BAR

UTILITY

BUILT-IN
SHELVES

ATTIC SPACE

MECH.
CHASE

A202

UNITS
Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" (22"X34" SHEET)

02 SQUARE FOOTAGE:282 S.F.UNIT B2-Level 01 04 SQUARE FOOTAGE:773 S.F.UNIT B2-Level 02 06 SQUARE FOOTAGE:822 S.F.UNIT B2-Level 03

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE:1,880 S.F.

21'-0" 21'-0" 21'-0"

4
0
'-8

"

4
0
'-8

"

4
0
'-8

"

GARAGE

KITCHEN

STUDY

BATH 2

BEDROOM 2CLOSET 2

BEDROOM 1

CLOSET 1

BATH 1

LIVING

POWDER

UTILITY

PANTRY

DINING

MECH
MUDROOM

STORAGE
UNIT

PATIO
ENTRY

V

I

T

R

U

V

I

A

N

 

W

A

Y

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
V

A
L

L
E

Y

B

E

L

L

A

 

L

A

N

E

KEY PLAN : UNIT LOCATIONS

W/H

WINE
COOLER

BUILT-IN
SHELVES

BALCONY

MECH.
CHASER

MECH.
CHASER

BUILT-IN
SHELVES

A203

UNITS
Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" (22"X34" SHEET)

02 SQUARE FOOTAGE:515 S.F.UNIT C1-Level 01

21'-0"

4
9
'-8

"

04 SQUARE FOOTAGE:1,036 S.F.UNIT C1-Level 02

21'-0"

4
9
'-8

"

06 SQUARE FOOTAGE:698 S.F.UNIT C1-Level 03

21'-0"

4
9
'-8

"

GARAGE

MUDROOM
STORAGE

UNIT

ENTRY

STUDY

UTILITY

BATH 1

BEDROOM 1

CLOSET 1

BATH 2

BEDROOM 2

CLOSET 2

BATH 3

BEDROOM 3CLOSET 3

LIVING

TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE:2,249 S.F.

PA
N

TRY

V

I

T

R

U

V

I

A

N

 

W

A

Y

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
V

A
L

L
E

Y

B

E

L

L

A

 

L

A

N

E

KEY PLAN : UNIT LOCATIONS

TERRACE

CLOS.

MECHW/H

LAUNDRY
CHUTE

LAUNDRY
CHUTE

MECH.
CHASE

MECH.
CHASE

BUILT-IN
SHELVES

CLOS.

DINING

KITCHEN

A204

UNITS
Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7004 Snowbound

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 

Please reference L102.1 for private yard/patio wall 
details. Material selection is provided below.



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 

7004 Snowbound

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 

7004 Snowbound



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Alabama Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Alabama Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 



AM-01, RF-02
Berridge
KYNAR 500
Charcoal Grey

DR-01
Sherwin Williams
SW7048 Urban Bronze

BR-01
ACME Brick
Westchester

PL-02
Sherwin Williams
SW 6003 Proper Gray

PL-01
Sherwin Williams
7006 Extra White

FC-01
Woodtone
Aspen Ridge

RF-01
GAF
 Timberline
Charcoal

Patio Wall
80% of mix
Limestone
Antique Brushed

Patio Wall
20% of mix
Limestone
Brushhammer Finish

AM-02,FC-02, DR-02
Sherwin Williams
7062 Rock Bottom 

7004 Snowbound



















A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21



A204Wilder Belshaw Architects

© 2021 WILDER BELSHAW ARCHITECTS

VITRUVIAN TOWNHOMES

1621 E. 6th Street Suite 1151, Austin, TX 78702
214-969-0500 phone    o    wilderbelshaw.com

3875 Ponte Ave Suite 410,  Addison,  TX 75001 
D  A  L  L  A  S               o           A  U  S  T  I  N

Addison, TX

Sheet Number:

Issue Date:

UDR
3875 Ponte Ave, Suite 400

Addison,  TX 75001 
972.774.0552 phone 07.30.21
















	Agenda
	AI_4151_October 19, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes
	    Minutes of the October 19, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting
	AI_4150_Case R2021-01_Vitruvian Park Addition
	    Replat - Vitruvian Park Addition, Lots 1R and 2, Block E
	AI_4149_Case 1841-SUP_14854 Montfort Drive (TK_s Place)
	    1841-SUP Plans
	TKS SUP DRAWINGS 11.10.21
	Sheets and Views
	TKS comedy craft house-SUP site plan

	TKS SUP DRAWINGS 11.10.21.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	TKS comedy craft house-SITE PLAN


	TKS SUP DRAWINGS 11.10.21.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	TKS comedy craft house-BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN
	TKS comedy craft house-SUP floor plan
	TKS comedy craft house-SUP ELEVATIONS



	TKS - L1
	Sheets and Views
	L1



	AI_4148_Case 1842-SUP_14450 Marsh Lane (Tierra Encantada)
	    1842-SUP Plans
	21 11-10 TE Addison - C0.01 SUP SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	C0.01 SITE PLAN


	21 11-10 TE Addison - L1.1 SUP Landscape Plan
	21 11-01 TE Addison - P+Z SUP Arch Package.pdf
	Sheets
	SK-1 - FLOOR PLAN


	21 11-01 TE Addison - P+Z SUP Arch Package
	Sheets
	SK-3 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS



	AI_4147_Case 1839-Z_Vitruvian Townhomes
	    1839-Z Plans
	Vitruvian Park Revised Concept Plan_11.3.21
	Site SubmittaL_Site Plan-A101
	Sheets and Views
	A101


	VTH_Arch & Civil
	Site SubmittaL_Units-A204.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A204


	Site SubmittaL_Units-A203.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A203


	Site SubmittaL_Units-A202.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A202


	Site SubmittaL_Units-A201.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A201



	Landscape
	20146_L100
	20146_L101
	20146_L102
	20146_L103
	20146_L104
	20146_L105
	20146_L106
	20146_L102.1



